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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Minda TG Rubber Private Limited

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Minda TG Rubber Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Stalement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statementi of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 {“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under scction 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rulcs, 2013, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a frue and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or crror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial siatements based on our audit. We have
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, We
conducted our andit of the Ind AS {inancial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audiling, issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, as specified under Section 143{10) of the Act. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statcments are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An andit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements. We believe that the sudit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our ‘opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2018, its loss including other comprebensive income, its cash flows and the changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained afl the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Tnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken con
record by the Board of Directors, none of the direciors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2} of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2 to this report;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Reporl in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Compary has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind AS
financial statements- Refer Note 32(b) to the Ind AS financial staternents.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For 8.1 Batliboi & CG. LLP

Chartered Accountants
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per Vikas Mehra
Partner
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Date: May 14, 2018
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Annexere referred to in paragraph under the heading “Repert en Gther Legal and Regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Minda TG Rubber Private Limited (‘the Company’)
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The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the company.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(iii)(2), (b) and {c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upoL.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceplance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the produects of the
Company.

(vii) {a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including

(b)

provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service lax, sales-tax, custom- duty, excise
duty, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding,
at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax and

value added tax on account of any dispute, arc as {ollows:

Name of Statote Nature of dues Amount Period to which Foruem to where
(Lacs) the amount dispute is pending
relates
Income Tax Act, | Demand under protective 396.82 AY 2015-16 Commissioner
1961 assessment of tax (Appeal }

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks. The Company did not have any outstanding dues in
respect of a financial institution or to government and did not have any outstanding debentures during the

year,
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(ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not raised any
money by way of initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments). During the year the
Company has utilized the monies raised by way of term loan for the purpose for which they were raised.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the Company or no fraud /on the Company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial remuneration has
been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not commenied upon.

(xiii) According to the information and cxplanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties arc in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertibie debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) arc not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192
of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm E}egistraﬁon Number: |
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per Vikas Mehra
Partner

Membership Number: 94421
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date; May 14, 2018
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ANNEXURE - I[ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MINDA TG RUBBER PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Contrels under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Minda TG Rubber Private Limited
(*the Company™) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
{or the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Tnternal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for epsuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibitity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Infernal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Nole”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the exfent applicable to an audit of internal {inancial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Tndia. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we compiy with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit io obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over finaneial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financjaf
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal {inancial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabie
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reposting and the preparation of financial statements for exiernal
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial staterents.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Finanecial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatenients due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detecied. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to futurc periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ali material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financiat reporting and such internal financial controls over {inancial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Conirols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICA_[{;Firm Registration [ SIBY3IE/E300005
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Partner SR
Membership Number: 94421
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 14, 2018



Minda TG Rubber Private Lionided

Balance Sheet as at hiarch 31, 2018
INR in lucs, wreless otherwise stared

Particulars

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial assets

Other financial assels
Other non-corrent assets
Deferred tax assets {net)

Crrrent assets
Inventoriss
Fmancial assets :
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Qthers financial agsets
QOther current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities :
Borrowings
Other financial Labilities
Long term provisions
Government grants

Current liabilities
Finapcial lizbilities ;
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Short term provisions
Government grants
Other cucrent liabilities

Total liabilrties

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Notes

4A
4B

12
13

14
18
15
16
17

3

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
6,948.59 6,651.75 5,265,97
311.00 27.54 1,157.99
18.01 40.14 59.97
16.07 16.07 3538
4.30 33.02 20.76
7,297.97 6,773.52 6,540.07
789.80 488 94 334.66
739.74 503.39 72.25
164.90 22572 50,52
97.86 18.26 253,81
564,73 452.62 440,24
2,357.03 1,648.93 1,151.48
9,655.00 8,d462.45 7,691.55
5,052,30 4,662.30 3,500.00
(1,854.37) (1,462.99) (935.67)
3,197.93 3,199.31 2,544.33
2,242.19 2,676.47 3,111.49
1,170.72 1,266.3% 1,156.07
22.7% 17.88 427
39.62 43.08 46.54
347532 4,003.82 4,318.37
1,410.00 450,00 -

1,207.81 585,43 55543
310.98 191,79 82.72
32.23 14.56 6.44
3.46 3.40 346
17.27 14.07 180.80
1.981.75 1,259.31 828.85
645707 5,263.14 5,147.22
9,655.00 8,462.45 7,691.55

The accompanying nofes are an integrai part of these financial statements

As per onr report of even dale

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14,2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Minda TG Rubber Priva'ju Limited

Ravi Shankar Gupta
Managing, Director
DIN - 00100578

e
.51
Dinééh Saini

Chief financial officer

Place: New Delhn
Date: May 14, 2018

Daisuke Esaki
Whole Time Director
DIN - 07843902

.
Aivod b
Avinay Sharma
Company Secretary
MNo.: A42599




Minda TG Rubber Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

INR in lacs, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Notes For the year ended  For the year caded

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Income

Revenue from operations 20 5,387.21 3.991.80
Other income 21 9.42 13.64
Total income A 5,396.63 4,005.44
Expenses

Cost of raw materials and components consumed 22A 3,385,716 2,128.38
Cost of moulds, tools & dies consumed 228 16.25 184,75
{Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progres: 23 (182.51) (113.03)
Excise duty on sale of goods 136.07 467.90
Employee benefits expense 24 794.01 617.46
Finance costs 25 367.14 333.22
BPepreciation and amortisation expense 26 466.13 302,69
Chher expenses 27 814.25 57274
Total expenses B 5,796,350 4,494.11
{Loss) for the year C [A-B] (399.87) (488.67)
Other comprehensive income

Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

in subsequent period:
Re-measurement gains/{loss} on defined benefit plans 13.02 (7.03)
Tncome tax effect (refer note §) - -
Net comprehensive income not to be reclassified to

statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods 13.02 (7.03)
Other comprchensive income for the year (netof taxy D 13.02 (7.03)
Total comprchensive income for the year

(comprising of profit and other comprehensive

income) C+Dh (386.85) (495.70)
Earnings per equity share on profit for the year
Basic 25 (0.81) (1.17)
Diluted 29 (0.81) 117

The accompanying notes are an inlegral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R.Badliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firgl Registration No.: 301003E/E300005
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Vi ik
per Vikas¥ehrd
Partner 4%
Membership No: 94421 $1¢7

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2018

Tor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Minda TG Rubb;r-i‘rivate Limited
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Ravi Shankar Gupta Daisuke Esaki
Managing Director ‘Whole Time Director
DIN - 00100578 DIN - (7843902
Q_’:’K P R -~
'ﬁ - !EWE B rL NJE\C’\?S ]
Dinesh Saini Avinav Sharma
Chiel financial officer Company Secretary
MNo.: A42599

Place: New Delh:
Date: May 14, 2018




Minda TG Rubber Privaie Limited

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended Karch 31,2018

INR in fues, nnless otherwise stafed

Particulars Share Other Equity

capital® Retained Totai Reserves Total equity
carnings and surplus

As at April 01, 2016 (A} 3,500.00 {955.67) (955.67) 2,544.33
Add: Profit (loss) for the year (488.67) (488.67) {488.67)
Add; Other comprebensive income - (7.03) (7.03) (7.03)
Add: Share issue expenses - (11.62) (11.62) (11.62)
Add: ssue of shares 1,162.30 - - 1,162.30
Total comprehensive income (B) 4,662.30 (1,462.99) (1,462.9%) 3,199.31
As at March 31, 2017 (A+B) 4,662.30 (1,462.99) (1,462.99) 3,199.31
Add: Profit {loss) for the vear (399.837) (399.87) (399.87)
Add: Other comprehensive income 13.02 13.02 13.02
Add: Share issue expenses (4.53) (4.53) (4.53)
Add: Tssue of shares 390.00 390.80
Total comprehensive income (C) 5,052.30 (1,854.37) (1,854.37) 3,197.93
As at March 31, 2018 (A+B+C) 5,052.30 (1,854.37) (1,854.37) 3,197.93

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statemertls

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

:;‘{?_gﬁner )
Membership No. 94421

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Minda TG Rubber Private Limited
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Ravi Shankar Gupta Daisuke Esaki
Managing Director Whole Time Director

DIN - ¢0100578 DIN - 07843902
g Qf‘/ﬁ;‘e N - i
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Dinesh Saini Avinav Sharma
Chief financial officer Company Secretary

M.No.: A42599

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2018




Minda TG Rubber Private Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2018
INR in lacs, nnless otherwise stated

Particulars

Cash Flow from Operating Activitics

(Loss) before tax

Adjustment to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Interest expense

Interest Income

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Operating profit before working capital changes
Movements in working capital :

Increasc in trade payables

(Increase) decrease in other financial liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in other liabilities

Decrease in provisions

Decrease in government grants

(Increase) in irade receivables

(Increase) in inventorics

(Increase) in other assefs

(Increase)/ decrease in financial assets

Cash generated from operations

Refund received/{ Direct taxes paid)

Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIP
and advances for Property, Plant and Equipment

Proceeds from sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of equity share capital (net of share issue expenses)
Troceeds from short term borrowings (net)

Proceeds from long term borrowings

Repayment of long term borrowings

Tnterest paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C )

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A +
B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year

Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,2617
(399.87) (488.67)
466.13 302.69
367.14 333.22
(5.45) {7.82)
(0.03) -
13.32 (123.70)
441.22 15,72
607.75 55.38
(51.06) 64.97
320 (166.73)
35.61 14.71
(3.46) (3.46)
(236.35) (431.14)
(300.86) (154.27)
{113.26) (12.37)
{78.42) 256.18
304.37 (361.02)
(0,55) 8.45
303.83 (352.57)
(1,000.98) (621.18)
0.73 -
4.27 6.50
{995.98) (614.69)
385.47 1,150.68
960.00 450.00
400.00 400,00
(747.00) (525.00)
(367.14) (333.22)
631.33 1,142.46
(60.82) 175.20
225.72 50.52
164.90 225.72

This space has been intentionally left blank:




Minda TG Rubber Private Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

INR in lucs, unless otherwise siated

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

Balance with banks

- on current accounts

- on deposil accounts

Tatal cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11)

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 3)

For S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAlgfjirm Regjstration No.: 301003E/E3060005

‘* R
VIR
per Vi s’(n{}{{efm

Partner ™~
Membership No: 94421

Place; New Delhi
Date: May 14, 2018

0.84 0.35
164.06 36.37
- 189.00
164.90 22572

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Minda TG Rubbeér Private Limited
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Ravi Shankar Gupta

Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN - 00100578 DIN - 07843902
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Dinesf Saini Avinav Sharma
Chief financial officer Company Secratary
MNo.: A42599

Place: New Deihi
Date: May 14, 2018




Minda TG Rubher Private Limited
Neotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate Informatfion

Minda TG Rubber Private Limited (“the Company™) is a private unlisted company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company is a subsidiary of Minda Industries
Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at B-64/1, Wazirpur Industrial Area- Delhi.

The company is engaged in the business of manufaciuring and trading of Industrial Brake Hose, Fuel Hose and
their components, accessories and fittings.

Information on other related party velationships of the Company is provided in Note 34.

The financial siatements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of directors on May 14, 2018..

2. Sionificant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
{(“Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). Ind AS is
applicable to the Company during the year ended March 31, 2018 (transition date being April 01, 2016). The
Company, being subsidiary of Minda Tndustries Limited {(“MIL”), prepared its financial statements as per Ind
AS accordingly.

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial
slaiements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013,
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 (“Indian GAAP?). Thesc financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 are the Company’s {irst {inancial statement prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The transition was carried cut from the accounting principles generally accepted in India (“Indian GAAP”)
which is considered as (“previous GAAP?), as defined in Ind AS 101. As these are the Company’s first financial
statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption
of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected
the previously reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in
Note 40. The preparation of these financial statements resulted in changes to the accounting policies as
compared 10 most recent annual financial statements prepared under Indian GAAP ("Previous GAAP”).
Accounting policies have becn applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial statements. They
have also been applied in preparing the Ind AS opening balance sheet as at April ¢1, 2016 for the purpose of
{ransition to Ind AS, as required by Ind AS 101,

The balance sheet corresponds (o the classification provisions as contained in Ind AS 1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements”, For the purposc of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statements of profit and
loss and balance sheet, however, the details of such items arc sepavately presented in the notes to accounts of the
financial statcments, where applicable.

The Company uses same accounting policies in its opening Ind AS halance sheet and throughout all periods
presented in its {irst Ind AS financial statements. These accounting poticies comply with Ind AS elfective at the
end of the fivst Tnd AS reporting period, excepl as specified in Ind AS 101,
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2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the histerical cost convention except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

B Expected ta be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

b Held primarily for the purpose of trading

b Expected te be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

k- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other assels are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

B Tt is expected to be seitled in normal operating cycle

b It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

| Tt is due to be seitied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

B There is no unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classificd as non-current asscts and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has idengified twelve months as its operaling cycle.

B. Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in India Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s
functional currency.

Transactions and balances:

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifics for recognition. However, for practical rcasons, the
Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction,
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are tramslated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange dilferences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-menectary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates ol the jpjtial transactions. Non-monctary ilems measured at fair
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value in a foreign currency are transtated using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of nen-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie..
iranslation differences on items whose [air vaiue gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measuremeni

Fair value js the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to self the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or Hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a lability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their ceonomic
best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ahility to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inpuls.

All assets and Liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial staiements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the Jowest level input that is
significant to the {air value measurenicnt as a whole:

B Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in aclive markets for identical assets or

liabilitics

T Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

b Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is mgmhcant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial slatements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 2
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revente is measured at the {air value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collccted on behalf of the
government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements
since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also
exposed Lo inventory and credit risks. '

"”‘(-;\ﬁ/
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The Company has assumed that recovery of excise duty flows o the Company on its own account. This
is for the reason that it is a liability of the manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production,
irespective of whether the goeds are sold or not. Since the recovery of excise duty flows to the
Company on its own account, revenue includes excise duty.

However, sales tax/ value added tax (VAT) / Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the
Company on its own account, Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller
on behall of the povernment. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from Lhe sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ewnership of
the goods have passed to the buyer. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and recorded using |
the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipls ;
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter petiod, where appropriate, to the gross |
carrying amount of the financial asset. When caleulating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected ;
cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the

expected credit losses.

Revenue from government grants

Refer note 3(E) for the policy to recognise revenue against government granis.

E. Government granis

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised 2s income on a systemalic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is
intended (o compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

F. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are cnacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation (o the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity, Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject lo interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the 1ax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences, the carey forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductibie temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reparting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected (o apply in the year
when the assct is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(cither in other comprehensive income or in equity), Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legaliy enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate lo the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of
the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful Jives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement il the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning
of an asset afler its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a
provision are met.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by thc management which is equal to as the rates
prescribed Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013. The company has used the following rates o
provide depreciation on its property, plant and equipment.

:
k
|
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H.

Particulars Useful Jives (years)
Building 30

Office equipment 5

Furniture and fixtures( including electrical fittings) 10

Computers 3

Vehicle . &

Plant & Machinery- general purpose machinery 15

Plant & Machinery-Trolly and Moulds 3

Plant & Machinery-Bins 2

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is incJuded in the statement of profit and loss when the
asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible nssets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumutated amortisation and acecumulated
impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic lifc and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usefut tife are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are comsidered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation cxpense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the differcnce
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs directly attributable fo the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its infended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. Al other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity ncurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the cxtent regarded as an
adjusiment to the borrowing costs. B0
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L

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or vontains) a lease is based on the substlance of the
arrangement at the inceplion of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific assct or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Compauy as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantialiy all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance
lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an cxpense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as
follows:

B Raw materials; cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incwrred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving average basis.

B Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding
borrowing costs. Cost is determined on moving average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less eslimated
¢osts of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Fmpairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, al each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount, An assel’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to ils recoverable amount.

Tn assessing valuc in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific lo the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposaf, recent market transaclions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation modei is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calcufation on defailed budgets and forecast catculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets arc allocated.
These budgets and forceast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a
Jong-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth ycar. To
estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the
Company cxirapolates cash flow projections ipjhe.hudget using a steady or declining growth rate for
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subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the produets, industries, or country or couniries in which
the entity opcrates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

For assels excluding goodwill, an assessmert is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication ihat previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If
such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used 1o
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the assel does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treaied as a revaluation
increase,

M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company bas a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be rcimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

N. Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund, The Company rccognizes
contribution payable 1o the provident {und scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
rclated service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan, which is unfunded. The cost of providing
benefits under the defined benefit plan is delermined using the projecied unit eredit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuariaf gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amourts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), arc recopnised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCT
in the period in which they occur. Re-measuremients are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods. |

Pasl service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of |
b The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and i
b The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate Lo the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation &s an ¢xpense in the
statement of profit and loss:

b Service cosls comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses om
curtaiiments and non-routine settlements; and

B Net interest expense or income

0. Provision (other than employee benefits)
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefils will be

required to sefife the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporﬁng'pcriod and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to scitle the
abligation, the provision is reversed.

P. Derivative instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instrument such as interest rate swaps and cross currency
swaps to mitigate the risk of change in interest rate and change in exchange rate on foreign currency
exposure respectively. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank. These derivative
financial instruments arc marked to market as at the reporting date and are designated at fair value
through profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as
financial liabilities when the fair value is negative,

¢}. Share based payments

Certain eligible employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby eligible employees render services as consideration for equity of parent Company.

The cost is measurcd initially at fair value at the grant date using a Black Scholes model, further details
of which are given in Note 41. This fair value is expensed over the period untii the vesting date with
recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is re-measured to fair value at each reporling date
up to, and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised in employee bepefits
expense.
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R. Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalent in the bzlance sheet comprise cash at bapks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash cquivaients consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

S. Earmings per share
Basic carnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of
the Company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average

number of equity shares oulstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of ali dilutive potential equity shares.

T. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a coniract that gives rise to a financial asset for onc entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument for another entity.

Financial assets
i. Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, ransaction costs that arc attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four calegories:

. Debl instruments at amortised cost.

. Debt instrutments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH).

. Debt instruments, detivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL). :
. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT).

Debt instruments at amortised cost

The category applies to the Company’s (rade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security
deposits and other loans and advances, etc.

A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost il both the following conditions are met

i The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asseis for collecting
contractual cash flows and

:
i
!
|
1
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{ii) Coniraciual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The accretion of ETR is
recorded as an income or expense in statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognifion

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet} when:

(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the assel has expired, or

(i) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset,

Financial Liabilities
Taitial recognition apd measurement

Financial liabilities are classitied, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profil or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
etc.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurcment, financial liabilities arc classified in two categories:
° Financial liabilitics at amortised cost
. Financial lizbilities at fair value through profit and Joss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at Amortized cost
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by {aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
bosrowings. .




Minda TG Rubber Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liahility is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial Jiability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liabifity. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and Joss.

U. Impairment of financial asseis

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) modei for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement
at amortised cost e.g., trade and other receivables, sccurity deposits, loan to employees, etc.

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment {oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

BCL is the diffesence between all confractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the entity expeots to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At cvery reporting date, the
historically observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as an cxpense in the
statement of profit and oss.

V. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possibie but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resourccs, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be
estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of
outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the peried in which the change
oCeurs,

W. Standard issued but not yet effective

a) Tnd AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs had potified Ind AS 115 'Revenue from
Contracts with Customers' which would be applicable for accounting periods beginning on or aller
1 April 2018.This Standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to report useful
information to users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Company is evaluating the
requirements of the standard and its impact on the financial stalements.

i
i
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b}

d)

Amendments to Ind AS 12 - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether lax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their castying amount.

Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively, However, on initial application of
the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the carliest comparative period may be
recognised in opening rctained carnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of equity.
Entitics applying this relief must disclose that fact.

These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, These
amendments are not expected o have any impact on the company as the company has no
deductible temporary differences or assets that are in the scope of the amendments.

Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments to Ind AS 40

The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the properly meets, or ccases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s inientions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.

Entities should apply the amendments prospectively to changes in usc that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. An
entity should reassess the classification of property held at that date and, if applicable, reclassify
property to reflect the conditions that exist at that date. Retrospective application in accordance
with Tnd AS 8 is only permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The
Company will apply amendments when they become effective. However, since there are no
investment propertics, the Compaty does not cxpect any effect on its financial statements.

Appendix B to Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Appendix clarifies that, in determining the spot exchange rale to use on initial recognition of
the related assct, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monctary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on
which an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from
the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the entity
must determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Entitics may apply the Appendix requirements on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an
entity may apply these requircments prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope
that are initially recognised on or after:

(i The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the Appendix, or

(if) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the
financial statements of the reporting period in which  the entity first applies the
Appendix.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018,
However, since the Company's current practice is in line with the Interpretation, the
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4 Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

A) Property, plant and equipment (net)

The details of property, plant and equipment (net) :

Particulars

Freehold land
Building

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipments
Computers

Vehicies

Total

B) Capital work in progress

As at

As at

As at

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017  April 01, 2016

The details of capital work in progress:

Particulars

Capital work in progress

Total

1,404.05 1,404.05 1,404.05
1,414.99 1,465.18 1,502.54
4,022.88 1,662.98 2233.92

24.40 25.48 25.68
45.70 49,89 4773
14.25 17.89 21.80
22.31 26.28 30.25
6,948.59 6,651.75 5.365.97
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016
311.00 27.54 1,157.99
31100 2754 1,157.99

€} Ind AS 101 Exemption: The Company has clected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the carrying value
for all of its property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress as its deemed cost as at the date of

trangition

Details of gross block, accnmulated depreciation and net block carried at deemed cost

Particulars

Freehold land
Buildings

Plant and machinery
Fumituze and fixtures
Office equipments
Computers

Vehicles

Total

Gross Blockas  Accumulated  Net Block as at
at depreciation as April 01,
April 01,2006  April 01,2016  2016/Deemed
Cost
1,404.05 - 1.404.05
1,541.34 38,80 1,502.54
2,316.71 G7.18 2,219.53
27.46 178 25.68
52.45 4.72 47.73
23.57 1.77 21.80
3172 1.47 30.25
5,397.30 145.72 5,251.58

This spacc has been intentionally left blank
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4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Frle;:;rld Building ]\l;:!;:,lssg af:;'::::::s cq:gfni]iilts Compuiers  Vehieles Total
Cost

As at April 01, 2016 1,404.05 1,541.34 2,331.10 27.46 52.45 23.57 3172 5,411.69
Additions - 21.64 1,620.81 3.93 13.24 2.96 - 1,661.99
As at March 31, 2017 1,404.05 1,562.38 3,951.91 31.40 65.69 26.53 31.72 7,073.68
Additions 9.17 711.89 2.84 10.38 5.04 - 739.32
Disposals - - - - - (0.74) - (0.74)
As at March 31, 2018 1,404.05 1,571.55 4,663.81 34.24 76.07 30.83 31.72 7,812.27
Depreciation

As at April 01, 2016 - 38.580 97.18 1.78 4.72 1.77 1.47 12.59
Charge for the year - 58.40 191,75 4.13 11.08 6.87 397 276.20
As at March 31, 2017 - 97.20 288.93 5.92 15.80 8.64 5.44 288.79
Charge for the year - 59.36 352.00 3.82 14.5% 7.99 3.97 441.81
Disposal - - - - - (0.05) - (0.05)
As at March 31, 2018 - 156.56 640.93 9.84 30.37 16.58 9.41 730.56
Net Block

As at March 31, 2018 1,404.05 1,414,99 4,022.88 24.40 45,70 14.25 22,31 6,948.58
As at March 31, 2017 1,404.08 1,465.18 3,662.98 25.48 49,89 17.89 26.28 6,651.75
As at March 31, 2016 1,404.05 1,502.54 2,233.92 25.68 47.73 21.80 30.25 5,265.97

As at As at As at
Net Book Value March 31, | March 31, April 1,
2018 2017 2016
Property, plant and equipment 6,948.58 6,651.75 5,265.97
This space has been intentionally left blank
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5 Tntangible asseis

a)

b)

o

Details of inlangible assets:

Particulars As af As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Tntangible assets

- Computer software 18.01 : 40.14 59.97
Total . 18.01 40.14 59.97
Disclosures regarding gross block of intangible assets, accumutated amortisation and net black are as given
below:

Particulars Soliwares Total
Cost
At April 01, 2016 67.78 67.78
Add: Additions 3.29 3.29
At March 31, 2017 71.07 71.07
Add: Additions 2.11 211
At March 31, 2018 73.18 73.18

Amortisation and impairment

At April 01, 2016 7.80 7.80
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 2313 23.13
Less: Disposals - -
At March 31, 2017 30.93 30.93
Add: Amortisation charge for the year 24.24 24.24
Less: Disposals . -
At March 31,2018 55.17 55.17
Net book value

At March 31, 2018 18.01 18.01
At March 31,2017 40.14 40,14
At April 01, 2016 59.97 59.97

The Company has elected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the carrying value for all of intangibles as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition,

Details of pross biock, accumulated depreciation and oet block carried at deemed cost

Particulars Gross Block as Accumulated Net Block as at
at depreciation as April 1,
April 01,2016  April 01,2016 2016/ Deemed
- Computer software 67.78 7.80 56.97
Total 67.78 7.80 59.97

This space has been intentiopally left blank
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6 Financial asscts

a) Breakup of financial assets:

b

o

Particulays

A. Trade receivables (Refer note 10)

B. Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 11)

C. Other financial assels
Non- current
Fixed deposits
Derivative assets

Current

Security deposits

Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Insurance claim receivable
Unbilled revenue

Derivative assets

Tetal {C)

Total (A +B+C)

Total current
Total non- current

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:

Particulars

Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other financial assets

Total

As at Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 3%, 2017 April 01, 2016

739.74 503.39 72.25

164.90 22572 50.52

16.07 16.07 16.07

- - 19.31

16.07 16.07 3538

13.95 16.02 1525

342 224 091

71.43 2548

9.06 - 194.45

- - 17.72

97.86 18.26 253.81

113.93 34.33 289.19

1,018.57 763.44 411.96

1,002.50 74137 376.58

16.07 16.07 35.38

1,018.57 763.44 411.96

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April OF, 2016

739.74 503.39 7225

164,90 225,72 50.52

113.93 34.33 252.16
1,018.57 763.44 374.93 |
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Miada TG Rubber Private Limited
Motes to financial statementis for the year ended Barch 31, 2018
INR in lacs, unfess otherwise stated

7 (ther assefs
(Unsccured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

The details of other assets:

Particelars

As at

As at

March 31, 2018 Barch 31, 2017

Non- curvent

As at
April 01, 2016

Advances for property, plant and equipment - 35.42 9.70
Advance income tax {net of provision for tax) 2.66 212 10.56
Prepaid expenses 1.64 0.48 0.50
4.30 38.02 20.76
Total (A) 4.30 38.02 20,76
Current
Balance with statutory / government authorities 523.81 424,77 430.11
Advance to employees - - 2.90
Advance to suppliers 11.73 2.75 142
Loans and advance to related parties - - 1.33
Prepaid expenses 29.19 25.10 4.49
Total (B) 564.73 452,62 449.24
Total (A+B) 569.03 490.64 461.00
Total current 564.73 452.62 444.24
Total non -current 4.30 38.02 20.76
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8  Deferred tax:
Particulaxs As at

Balance sheet
As at

As at

March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016

Deferred tax assels relates to the foliowing :

Carried forward unabsorbed depreciation and losses 870.79 665.54 387,93

Impact of ¢xpenditures charged to statement of profit and loss in the current year 17.00 10.02 3.31

but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Others 4.12 618 8.24
: (A) 891.91 681.74 399.48

Deferred tax liability relates to the following :

Property, plant and equipment; impact of difference between tax depreciation and

depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting @79.71) (289.14) (151.40)

(B) {379.71) (289.14) {151.40)
Total deferred tax assets (Net) (A)-(B) 512.20 392.60 248.08

Total deferred tax assets recognised * -

The Company offsels tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off cusrent tax assets and current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 1o inconte taxes levied by the same tax authority.

#The Company has a net deferred tax asset, primarily comprising of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses under lax laws.
However, as the subsequent realization of such amounts is not reasonable certain in near future, the management is of the view that it is
prudent not to recognize deferred tax asset, Accordingly, deferred tax assets have been recognised only to the extent of deferred fax

liabilities.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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9 Yoveatories (Valued af lower of cost and net realisable valuce)
a} Details of inventorics:

Particulars

Raw material and components
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Stores and spares

Moulds, tools and dies

Total

b) Stores and spares are capitalised if they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment as per [nd AS 16, otherwise they

are classified as inventory.

As at As al As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

329.06 260.32 249 14
177.89 73.81 17.13
176.79 98.36 42,01

83.12 38.94 3.71

2291 17.51 17.67
789.80 488.94 334.66

As per Ind AS 16, Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:
i) Are held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and

ii) Are expected {o be used during more than ene period

Management has assessed that the useful life of stores and spares is less than one year, considered as part of inventories.

16 ‘Trade receivables
2) Details of trade receivables:

TParticulars

Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they were due for payment

Unsecured - considered good
Total (A)

Other trade receivables
Unsecured - considered geod

Total (B}

Total (A+E)

b} Trade receivables due from related parties amounts to INR Nil as at March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017 : INR Nil , April 01, 2016

As at As at As at
March 31,2018  Mareh 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
6.46 - 0.34
6.46 - (.34
733.28 503.39 71.91
733.28 503.39 71.91
739.74 503.39 72.25

¢} Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on tepms of not mere than 30-60 days.
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11 Cash and cash equivalents
a) Dectails of cash and cash equivalents:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016

Balances with banks:
-Current account 164.06 36.37 46.81
-Deposit with original maturity of less than three months - 189.00 -
Cash on hand 0.84 0.35 3.71
Total 164.90 22572 50.52

b) For the purpose of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash eqguivalents comprise of the following:

Particulars As at Asat As af
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 Aprii 01, 2016

Balances with banks:
-Current account 164.06 36.37 46.81
-Deposit with original maturity of less than three months - 189.00 -
Cash on hand 0,84 035 3.71
Total 164,90 225.72 50.52

This space has been inlentionally left blank
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12 Share Capital

a) Detuils of share capital is as follows:

Parficulars As at As at Asat
Warch 31,2018 March 31,2017 April 01,2016

Authorised share capital
50523 lacs (March 31, 2017 466,23 lacs , April 01, 5,052.30 4.662.30 3,500.00
2016: 350.00 lacs) equity shares of INR 10 each

5,052.30 4,662.30 3,500.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
505.23 lacs (March 31, 2017: 46623 lacs , Aprl 01, 5,052.30 4,662.30 3,500.00
2016: 350.00 lacs) equity shares of INR 10 each

5,052.3¢ 4,662.30 3,500.00

b} Reconciliation of authorised, issued, subscribed and paid up share capital:
Reconciliation of authorised share capital as at year end ;
Equity Shares

Particulars No. of shares Amount
At April 01, 2016 350.00 3,500.00
Increase during the year 116.23 1,162,30
At March 31, 2007 466.23 4,662.30
Increase during the year 39,00 390,00
AtMarch 31, 2018 505.23 5,052,30

Parficulars

Tquity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and
fully paid

At April 01, 2016
Issued during the year
At March 31, 2017
[ssued during the year

At March 31, 2018

This space has been intentionally jeft biank
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i, Reconciliation of issued, subscribed and paid up share capital as at year end:

Equity Shares

Mo, of shares Amount
350,00 3,500.00
116.23 1,162.30
466.23 4,662.30
39.00 390.00
505,23 5,052.30
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¢} Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share.
During the year, no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.
Tn the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assels of

the Company, afier distribution of any preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders,

d) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No. of shares % holding in No. of shares % holding in the
(in lacs} the equity (in lacs) equity shares
Minda Industries Ltd 257.67 51 237.78 51
Tovoda Gosei Co.Ltd., Japan 247.56 49 205,14 44
Toyota Tsusha Corporation, JTapan - - 23.31 5

€} There are no bonus issuc or buy back of equity shares during the preceeding years.

f) As per records of the company, including is register of shareholders/ menhers and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of
shares, '

g) Shares held by Holding Company

Particulars As af March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Minda Industries jtd 257.67 2,576.67 237.78 237171

13 Other equity

Particulars Retained Total

At Aprit 01, 2016 {955.67) (955.67)
{Loss) for the year (488.67) (488.67)
Cther comprehensive income for the

year, net of tax (7.03) (7.03)
Shaze issue expenses (11.62) (11.62}
At March 31, 2017 {1,462.99) (1,462.99)
(Loss) for the year (399.87) (399.87)
Other comprehensive income for the

year, net of lax 13.02 13.02

Share issue expenses (4.53) (4.53}
At March 31, 2018 (1,854.37) (1,854.37)
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14 Borrowings

a) Details of borrowings:

Particulars

Noo-carrent Borrowings
Term leans from banks (Unsecured) *
Less: Amount clubbed "other current labilities”

Current Borrowings

Working capital demand loan (TTnsecured) **

Tofal current
Tutal non- current

* Term loan
Borrowings
External Commercial Borrewing of USD 10,13 lacs
equivalent to INR 678.62 lacs (March 31, 2017 : USD
13.25 Jacs equivalent to INR 859.25 lacs and April 1,
2016: 138D 15.59 lacs equivalent to INR 1031.73 lacs)

External Commercial Borrowing of USD 10.43 lacs
equivalent to INR 659.16 lacs (March 31, 2017 : USD
12.64 lacs equivalent to INR 884.63 lacs and April 1,
2016: USD 16.05 lacs equivalent te INR 1062.20 lacs)

External Commercial Borrowing of TJSD 15.38 lacs
equivalent to TNR 1000.91 lacs (March 31, 2017 : USD
20.12 lacs equivalent to INR 1304.75 lacs and April 1,
2016: USD 23.67 lacs equivalent to TNR 1566.64 lacs)

External Commercial Borrowing of USD 5.8 lacs
equivalent to INR 344.02 lacs (March 31, 2017 : USD
5.99 |acs equivalent to JNR 388.60 lacs end April 1,
2016: USD Nil equivalent to INR Nil)

External Commercial Borrowing of USD 6.24 lacs
equivalent to INR 406.20 lacs (March 31, 2017 ; USDy
Nit equivalent to INR Mil and April 1, 2016: USD Nil
equivalent to INR Nil)

#% Working capital demand loan

As at As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2417 April 01, 2016
3,088.94 3,437.25 3,660.57
846.76 76078 549.09
2,242.19 2,676.47 3,111.49
1,410.00 450,00 -
1,410.00 450.00 -
1,410.00 450.00 -
3,088.94 3,437.25 3,660.57

Terms of repayment
20 Quarterly instalments of INR 50
lucs each starting from september 2016
uplo June, 2021,

20 Quarterly instabments of INR 50
lacs each starting from september 2016
upte June, 2021.

20 Quarterly instalments of INR 3¢
lacs each starting from september 2016
upto June, 2021

16 Quarterly instalments of INR 23.25
lacs each and 1 instailiment of INR 24
starting from December 2017 upto
December 2021,

16 Quarterly instalments of INR 25
lacs each starting from december 2018
upto September, 2022,

Interest rate

8.95%

9.30%

8.98%

9.05%

7.87%

Working capital demand loan to the tupe of INR 960 lacs (Interest rate §.40%) and TNR 450 Jacs (Interest rate
11.80%) borrowed on 6 March, 2018 and 28 March, 2018 respectively {March 31, 2017: INR 330 lacs (Interest ralc
8.50%) and TNR 120 lacs (Interest rate 9.00%) borrowed on March 15, 2017 and March 24, 2018 respectively.)
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15  Other financial liabilities

a) Details of other financial liabilitics carried is as follows:

Particulars

Non-current
Amount payable for property, plant and equipment

Current maturily of long term borrowing (refer note 14)

Derivative lizbilities
Total

Current

Amount payable for property, plant and equipment
Derivative liabilities

Total

Total current
TFotal non- corrent

b) Breakup of financial liabilities at amortised cost;

Particudars

Tong term borrowings

Current matnrity of long term borrowings

Shorl term borrowings

Trade payables

Amount payable for properly, piant and equipment
‘Total

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

As af As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2016
313.86 450,57 606.98
846.76 760,78 549.09
10.10 5504 -
1,170,72 1,266.39 1,156.07
307.16 181.86 8272
3.82 9.93 -
310.98 191.7% 82.72
310.98 191.7% 82.72
1,370.72 1,266.39 1,156.07
As at As at As at

April 01, 2016

2,242.19 2,676.47 3,111.49
846.76 760.78 549.09
1,410.00 450.00 -
1,207.81 58543 55543
621.02 632.43 639.70
6,327.78 5,105.11 4,905.71

) Amount payable for property, plant and equipment to related parties amounts to INR. 621,02 as at March 31, 2018

(March 31, 2017 ; 578.97 , April 01, 2016 : 576,42 ).

16 Provisions

a} Deiails of provisions:

Particulars

Non- current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity

Total {A)
Current
Provision for employee bencfits

Provision for gratuity
PProvision for compensated absences

Total (B)

Total {A+B)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 01, 2010

22,79 17.88 4.27
22.79 17.58 4.27

0,76 0,51 0.07
31.47 13.65 6.37
32.23 14.56 6.44
55.62 3244 10.71
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17 Government grants

Particulars As at Asat As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 01, 2016

Non- current

Deferred government grants 3962 43,08 46,54

Total (A) 39.62 43.08 46.54

Current

Deferred government grants 3.46 3.46 3.46

Total (B) 3.46 3.46 3.46

Total (A+B) 43.08 46.54 50.00

Note: During the year 2015-16, the Company got entitled to goverrunent grants under the "export promotion capital

goods scheme (EPCG)".
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i8 ‘Frade payabtes
a) Details of frade payables:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31,2087  April 01, 2016

Trade payables
- Trade payables (Refer Note 33 & 34) ' 1,207.81 58543 555.43

Total 1,207.81 585.43 555,43

b} Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-60 days lerms.

¢) Trade pavahles to related parlies amounts to as at March 31, 2018 INR 91.23 (March 31, 2017 : INR 100.61 , April
01,2016 : INR 104.29).

19  Other liabilities
a} Details of other Habilifies:

Parficulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31,2017 April 01, 2016

Current

Statutory dues 1727 14.07 18.41
Advance from customers - - 162.39
Total 17.27 14.07 1860.80
Current 17.27 14.07 180.80
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20 XRevenue from operations

1) The details of revenue from operations is as follows:

Particulars

Sale of products
Finished goods *

‘Fotal sale of produocts (A)
Other operating revenue:
- Scrap sale
- Mould sale

Total other operating revenue (B)

Revenue from operations (448}

For the year ended

For the year ended

harch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
5,331.33 3,789.73
5,331.33 3,789.73
10.64 495
4524 197.12,
55.88 202.07
5,387.21 3,991.80

*Sale of goods includes excise duty collected from customers of INR 136.06 lacs (31 March 2017
INR 467.90 lacs). Sale of goods net of excise duty is INR 5195.27 lacs (31 March 2017; INR 3321.82

Revenue from operations for periods up to 30 Jupe 2017 includes cxcise duty. Frem t July 2017

onwards the excise duty and most indjreet taxes in India have been replaced Goods and Service Tax
{GST). The group collects GST on behalf of the Government, Hence, GST is not included in Revenue

from operations. In view of the aforesaid change in indirect taxes, Revenue from operations year

ended 31 March 2018 is not comparable 31 March 2017,

b} Detail of products sold:
Particulars

Details of finished goods sold
I3rake Hose
Fuel Hose

Total

21 Other income

The details of other income:
Particuiars

Interest income

- On fixed deposits
Miscellaneous income
Goverenment grants
Total

For the year ended

For the year

March 31, 2018 ended
2,952.25 1,627.45
2,379.08 2,162.28
5,331.33 3,789.73

For the year ended

For the year

March 31,2018 ended
545 7.82
0.51 2.36
3.46 3.46
9.42 13.64
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22 Cost of raw mafterizls and components consumed

a}

b)

<)

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Particulars

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases made during the year
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Details of raw materials and components consumed :

Particulars

Fittings

Rubber and Chemicals
Others

Total

Cost of moulds consumed

Particulars

Tnventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases made during the year
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Total

(Increase)/ decrease in inventorics
Particulars

Inveniories at the end of the year
Work in pregress
Finished goods

Tnventeries at the beginning of the year
Work in progress
Finished goods

Change in inventeries

For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2617

260.32 249.14

3,453.93 2,139.56

320.09 260.32

3,385.16 2,128.38

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2018

March 31,2017

144558 723.65

1,523.56 1,064.19

416,02 340.54

3,385.16 2,128.38

For the year ended For the year cnded
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

17.51 17.67

21.65 184.59

2291 17.51

16.25 184.75

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

177.89 7381
176.79 98.36
354,68 172.17
73.81 17.13
08.36 42.01
172.17 59.14
{182.51) (113.03)
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23 (Increasc)/Decrease in inventorics of finished goods and work-in-progress

a) Details of Changes in inventories of finished goods and worl-in-progress is as follows:

Particulars For the year For the ycar
ended ended
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Changes in inventories of finished goods and wosk-in-progress (182.51) (113.03)
Total (182.51) {113.03)
b) Detailed brealkup of the changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress is as follows:
Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2018 March 31, 2007

Opening stock
- Fintshed goods 98.36 42.01
- Worl-in progress 73.81 1733
Total A 172.17 59.13
Closing stock

- Finished goods 176.79 98.36
- Work-in progress 177.89 73.81
Total B 354.68 17217
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

- Finished goods (78.43) (56.33)
- Work-in progress (104.08) {56.69)
Total (A-B) (182.51) (113.04)

Details of inventory

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Finished gnods

Brake lose 133.07 12.71

Fuel Hose 43.72 85.65

Work in progress

Brake Hose 140,73 222

Fuel Hose 37.16 51.60

Total 354.68 172,17
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24  Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Salaries, wages and honus (includes wages for contract labour)
Contributions to provident and other funds

Graluity expense (refer note 31)

Staff welfare expense

Employee compensation expenses

Total

25 Finance costs

Particulars

Interest ¢xpense

-to Banks
Unwinding of discount
Taotal

26 DPepreciation and amortization expenses

Particulars

Depreciation of property, plani and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

616.26 479.56
29.45 29,82
14.00 454
98.31 89.97
35.99 13.57

794.01 617.46

For the year ended Feor the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

357.13 316.79
10.01 13.43
367.14 333.22

For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
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27

{ither expenses

Particulars

Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Decrease of excise duty on inventory
Repairs and maintenances
Building
Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Legal and professional expenses
Communication cost
Travelling and conveyance
Payments to auditors (refer details below)
Printing and stationery
Royalty expenses
Exchange difference {net)
Freight expenses
Bank. charges
SAP license fee
Management fee
Lass on sale of property, plant and equipment
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Payment made to auditors is as follows:

Particulars

Payment to anditors
As auditor:

Statutory Audit Fee {including fee for limited reviews)

Tax Audit Fees
TP Certification
Total

For the year
ended March 31,

¥or the year
ended March 31,

This space has been intenticnally left blank

2018 20617
112.90 58.13
197.80 134,86

31.20 29.00
.92 411
- 0.11
20.18 5.31
36.15 16.13
7.78 0.61
12.25 2599
6,82 7.73
57.39 70.13
10.50 7.60
2.1 3.50
104,11 7291
2.30 (7.21)
2541 9,51
1.65 328
22.48 12.06
51.98 33.53

1.89 -
98.80 §6.07
814.25 572,74

For the year For the year
ended March 31,  ended Rarch 31,

2018 2017
850 5.00
1.50 1.50
0,50 0,50
10.50 7.00
N
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28 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCT)
The disaggregation of changes to OCT by each type of reserve in equify is shown below:

Retained earnings

Particulars
For the year For the year
ended March 31, eaded March 31,
2018 2017
Re-measurement {gains)/ losses on defined beneftt plans (13.02) 7.03
Deferred tax thereon (Refer note 8) - -

(13.02) 7.03

29 Eargings per share (EPS)

a) Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

b) Diluied EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (after adjusting
for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential

equity sharcs inlo equity shares.

¢) The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars March 31,2018  March 31, 2017
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (399.87) (488.67)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and 495.62 419.10
diluted EPS (Number ir Jacs)
Basic and diluted earpings per share (face value INR 10 (0.81}) (1.17)
per share)

d)} There have been no fransactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting daic and the
date ol authorisation of these financial statements.
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3¢ Significant accounting judgements, cstimaies and assamptions

The preparation of the Company’s [inancial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Jiabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could resuit in
outcomes that require a material adiustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

Tn the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Lease of equipment not in legal form of lease

Significant judgement is required to apply leases accounting rutes under Apperdix C Ind AS 17 Determining whelher
arrangemertt contains a lease. In assessing the applicability of arrangement entered into by the Company, management has
exercised judgement to evaluate the right to use underlying assets, substance of the tramsaction including legally enforced
arrangements and other significant terms and conditions of "{he arrangement to conclude whether arrangement meet the
criteria under Appendix C to Ind AS 17.

i
i
i

Contingencies
Contingent liability may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including
legal and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain fulure events
occur or fail to occur. The assessment of existence, and potential quantum, of contingeneies inherently invelves the
exercise of significant judgement and use of estimates regarding the eutcome of future cvents,

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and Tiabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
financial slatements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due 1o market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contrel of the Compary. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur,

Taxes

Deferred tax assels are recogmized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses cn be utilised, Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upen the likely timing and the level of future taxabie profits together
with future tax planning strategies.
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Defined benefit plans

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate,
fulure safary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the vaiuation and its Jong-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date,

The paratmeter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operaied
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific
couniries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at inferval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are hased on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

Property, plant and equipment

Refer note 3(G) for the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment. The carrying value of property, plant and
equipment has been disclosed in note 4.

Intangible assets

Refer note 3(H) for the estimated useful life of intangible assets. The carrying value of intangible assets has been
disclosed in note 5.
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31 Post employment defined benefit plan {gratuity}

The compuny eperates one defined plans, viz., gratuity , for its emplovees. Under the praluity plan, cvery employes who has completed atteast five years of service gets a
pratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn salary for each completed year of service, The scheme 1s unfunded.
The following tables summarize the components of net beaefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for (he

gratuity plan.

Statement of prefil and loss
Net emplayee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

Currenl service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost obligation
Net benefit expense

Amaoumnt recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial (gain}loss on defined benefit cbligation
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement of the net defimed benefit liability/ (asset):

Actuarial {gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial {gain)loss arising from changes in financial assurptions
Actuarial (zain)floss arising from chapges in expetience adjustments
Total

Balance sheet
Changes in the present vatue of the defined benefit obligntion are, as follows;

Defined benefit obligetion af the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Past service cost

Aequisition adjustment

Renedits paid

Aetuarial {gain)/ loss on obligations - OCI

Defined henefit obligation at the end of the year

The assumptions used in delermining gratuity liabitity for the Company’s plans are showm below:

[hscount rate

WKate of increase n compensation level
Retirement Age

Withdrawal rates:

Upto 30 years

From 31 1o 44 years

Above 44 years

Mortality rate

Far the year ended
Maurch 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Rs, Rs.
7.34 392
5.35 -
L3l 0.62
14.00 4.54
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Es. Rs.
{13.02) 7.03
(13.02} 7.03
For the year ended For the yrar ended
Murch 31, 2018 March 31, 2617
Rs. Rs.
- (3.65)
{3.60) 864
(9.42) 2.04
(13.02) 7.03
Far the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs. Rs.
18,79 4.33
7.34 392
131 .62
533 -
5,02 336
1.25) ©.47)
{13.02) 7.03
23.54 18.79
For the year ended Far e year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Rs. Rs.
780% 6.95%
% Y
58 Years 58 Years
13% 13%
ke Kk
1% 1%
100% 100%

The estimates of fature safary increases, considered in actuarial vahuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and olher relevant factars, such as supply and
demand in the cmployment market. Assumptions regarding foture moriabity are based on the published staristics and martality tables. The calculation of the defined benefit

obligation is sensitive (o the mortality assumptions,

A quantitative sens‘iriv'it_v analysis for significant assomption as at March 31, 2018 is as shown

below:

Gratuity Flan

Assumptions

Increase in discount rate of 1%
Decrease in discomnt rate of 1%
Tnerease in lutwre salary of 1%

Decrease in future salary of 1%

Tmpact on DEQ

31-Mar-18

21.34
2613
25.26
22.0%

3-Mar-17

16.8
21,16
2021
17.538

The sengitivity analyses above have beun determined based on 2 method that extrapulates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

assumplions occurring at the end of the reporting perind.
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32 Commitments and contingencies
a) Capital and other commitments
(1) Capital commitments {net of advance) are IR 422.22 (March 31, 2017: INR. 133.81 April 1, 2016: [NR. 84.86).
(2} Others commitments (et of advance} are INR. 56.52 (March 31, 2017: INR. 1501, Agpril 1, 2016: INR. 14.06},
1) Contingeneies

For the year ended  For fhe year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Rs. Rs.
The Company has received demand under protective assessment amounting to INR 396.82 lacs 396.82 il
for Assessment Year 2015-16 which has been appealed by the Company before Commissioner
(Appeal) and Company believe that there would not be any probabie outflow of resource in this
matter.
Lizbility of Customs duty fowards export obligation undertaken by the Company under "Export 103.93 103.93

Promotion Capital Goods scheme (EPCG)"
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33 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as delined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars

The principal amount and the inferest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplicr as at the end of each accounting year

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
Ingerest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the
supplier beyond the appeinted day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the
vear) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year.

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest due as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

March 31,2818  March 31, 2017  April 01, 2016
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3
1

L=

2

3

Relsied party disclosures

Nanes of related parties and related party relstionship

Reluted Prrlies where enntrol exists
Holding Company
Minda Industries Limited

Related parties with whom (runsactions have taken place during the period

Enfities Baving significant influence
Toyoda Gossi Co, L4d, Japan

Key Managerial Personnel (""KMP"}
Mr. Ravi Shankar Gupta

M. Kiyoshi Shibata

Mr. Daisuke Esaki (w.e.f June 6, 2017}

Refated party transactions

The following labls provides the total amount of transaciions that have been entered into with related parties for th relovant financiat year;

Nature of trunsactions

Halding Company

Campanies having Significant influeace

Key managerent personnel

Far year ended
March 31,2018
Rs.

For year

ended

March 31,2017
Rs.

For year ended March
31,2018
Rs,

Yor year ended March
31,2017
Rs.

For yesr ended
March 31,2018
Rs

Far year ended
March 31,2017
Rs.

{A) Purchases of fixed gssets

Toyoda Gosei Co, Ltd, Japan (including technical
support cost}

Minda Industrics Limited

(B} Sales of fixed assets
Minda Industries Limited

(C) Purchases of Materials
Toyeda Gosei Co. 14d, Japan{ Consumables)
Teyoeda Gosei Co. Litd, Jupan{ Moniis and dies)

(B} Relmbursement of expenses

Minda Industries Limiied
Tovoda Gosel Co, Ltd, Japan

{X) Payment Eor expenses {Gross)

Minda Tndustries Limited. {Management Fees)

Minda Industries Limited {SAP Fees)

Minda Industries Limited {(ESOP)

Minda Industries Limited {Software maintenance)
Toyoda Gosei Co Lid, Japan (Rovalty}

Toyoda Gosei Co T.td,Japan (Technical support Cost)

(F} Issue of shares(In INR)

Toyoda Gosei Co. Ltd, Japan
Minda Industries Linited

{G) Managerial remuneration{ Amoust paiil in
the capacity of KMP}

Mr. Kiyoshi Shibata

Mr. Daisuke Esaki

Mr. Ravi Shankar Gupia *

L70

3198
2244
3559
10.00

19850

092

3353
12.06
13.57

59277

204.26

112,75

24.18
70.28

7.53

1497
56.21
11235

6497

$3.84

* inchiding ESOP

Outstanding balunces al he year end

Particulars

Hoiding Company

Companies having Significant influeace

Key manugement personnel

Tor yenr ended
March 31,2018
Rs

Far year ended

March 3
Rs

1,2017

For year ended
March 31,2018
Rs

For year ended
March 31,2017
Rs.

For year ended
March 31,2018
Rs

Fos year ended
Marck 31,2017
Rs.

(A) Frade and other payables
Toyoda Gosei Co. Lid, Japan
Minda Industries Limited

24.16

78608

680,04
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35 Segmental information

Business segments:

The Compeny is engaged in the business of manufacturing and selling of automotive brake hose and fuel hose. The entire
operations are governed by the same set of tisk and retumns and, hence, the same has been considered as Tepresenting a single
primary segment.

Since the Company’s business activity falls within a single business segment, there are no additional disclosures 10 be
provided under Ind AS-108 ‘Operating Segments’ other than those already provided in the Financial Statements.

Geographical segments:
The Company sells its prodocts and services within India and do not have any operations in economic environments with
different set of risks and returns, Hence, it is considered to be eperating in a single geographical segment.
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36 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital memagement, capital includes issued equily capital, all equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capilel management is lo maximise the shareholders' value.

The Company manages iis capital structure and makes adjustments in kight of changes in economic conditions and (he requirements of the financial
covenants, if any. To maintain or adjust the capitel structure, the Company reviews the find management at regular intervals and take necessary
actions to maintain the requisile capital stucture.

37 Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instmuments, other than those with camying
amournts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

a) Fair value of financial assets:

Carrying values Fair values
Particulars As ot March 31, As atMarch31, Asat April 01, AsatMarch31, AsalMarch3l, AsatApril0l,
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 20616
Financial assets measared at w
amortised cost(Refer {o note 6 (B)} |
Trade receivables * 735.74 ) 50339 72.25 73974 503.39 7225
Cash and cash equivalents * 164.90 22572 50.52 164.50 22572 50.52
Security deposit* 1395 16.02 15.25 13.95 16.02 1525 |
Interest acerued but not due on {ixed 342 2.24 0.9 342 224 051 |
deposits* L
Insurance claim receivable * 71.43 - 25.48 71.43 - 2548 ;
Fixed Deposit ¥ 16.07 16.07 16.07 16.07 16.07 16.07
Unbilled revenue * 9.06 - 194,45 9.06 - 194.45
Derivative assets - - 37.03 - = 3103
Total 1,018,57 763,44 411.96 1,018,857 763.44 41196
b} Fair value of financiak abilitics:
Carrying valucs TFair valoes
Particulars As at March 31, AsatMarch31, AsatApril0l, AsatBbarch3l, Asat March31, As at April 01,
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost (Refer note 15(b))
Borrowings 2,242.19 2,676.47 3,111.49 2,242.19 2,676.47 3,111.49
Current maturity of long term 846.76 T60.78 549.09 84676 760.78 548.09
borrowings
Working capital demand loan* 1410.00 450.00 - 1,410.00 #450.00 -

Trade payables ¥ 1,207.81] 58543 55543 1,207.81 58543 55543
Amount payzble for property, plant 621.02 632.43 689,70 621.02 £32.43 689.70
and equipment
Derivative Labilities ' 1392 64.97 - 13.92 64.97 -
‘T'ntal ’ 6,341.70 5,170.08 4,905.71 6,341.70 5,170.08 4,905.71

* Management has assessed that rade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade payables and Interest accrued on borowings
approximate their carrying amounts largely due ta the short-tern maturities of these instruments.

Discount rate used in determining fair value

The interest rate used o discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowing rate of borrower which in
case of financial Liabilities is average market cost of borrowings of the Company and in case of financial asset is the average markel rate of similar
credit rated instrument. The company mainteins policies and procedures to value finuneial assets or financial Jiabilities using the best and most
relevant data available.

The fair value of the financial assels and lizbilities is inciuded at the ameount at which the instrument could be exchanged in 2 current fransaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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38 Fair value hierarchy

All financial instrements for which fair value is recoguised or disclosed are calegorised within the fair value hierarchy, described

as follows, based on the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair value measarement as a whole.

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

Level 21 Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair value measurement are

. abservable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3; Vahation technigues for which the lowest level input wirich has a significant effect on the fair value measurement is not

based on abservable market data.

The following (able provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and lizbilities

Quantitative disclosures fair valoe measurement hierarchy for asseis as at March 31, 2018:

Partienlars

Financial assets measured at amorfiscd
cost{Refer to note 6 (b))
Trade receivables *
Cash and cash equivalents ¥
Security deposit*
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits*
Tnsurance claim receivable *
Fixed Deposit *
Unbilled revenue *
Total

Quantitative disclosures fair value measarement hierarchy for liabilities as af March 31, 2018:

Particulars

Financial liabilities measured al amortised cost

(Refer note 15(h))

Bomrowings
Current maturity of long tenn borrowings
‘Working capital dewand loan®
Trade payables *
Amount payablc for property, plant and
Derivalive labilitics
Total

Total Quuted Significant Significant
{Carrying Value) prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

739.74 - - -

164.90 - - -

13.95 - - -

3.42 - - -

7143 - - -

16.07 - - -
9.06

1,018.57 - - -

Total Quoted Significant Sigoificant
{Carrying Value) prices in observable unochservable
active markets inputs iapuis
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

2,242.19 - - -
846.76
1,410.00

1,207.81 - - -
621.02
13.92

6,341,70
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2017:

{Amount in Rs.}

Particulars Total Quoted Significant Significant
(Carrying Value) prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inpuis
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financial assefs measured at amortised
cost{Refer to note 6 (h)).
Trade receivables * 503.3%
Cash and cash equivalents * . 22572 - - -
Security deposit* 16.02 - - -
Tnterest accrued but not due on fixed deposits* 224 - - -
Insurance claim receivable * - . - -
Fixed Deposit * 16.07 - - -
Taotal 763.44 - - -
Quantitative disclosures fair value measerement hicrarchy for Mabilities as at March 31, 2017:
Particulars Total Quoted Significant Significant
{Carrying Value) prices in observahle nnobservable
active marliets inputs inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial liabilities mensured at amortised cast
(Refer note 15{b))
Borrowings 2,676.47 - - -
Current matuority of long term bomowings 760,78 - - -
Working capital demand loan* 450.00 - - -
Trade payables * 585.43 - - -
Amount payable for property, plant and 632.43 - - -
Derivative hubilides 64.97
Total 5,170.08 - - -
Quanfitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at April 01, 2016:
Particulars " Total Quoted Significant Significant
(Carrying Value) prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs mputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Financixl assets measured at amorfised
cost{Refer to note 6 (b))
Trade receivables * 72.25
Cash and cash equivalents * 50.52 - - -
Security deposit* 1525
Interest acerued but not due on fixed deposits® 0.91
Insurance claim receivable * 2548 - - -
Fixed Deposit * 16.07 - - -
Unbilled revenue * 194.45
Derivative assefs 37.03
Total 411.26 - - -
Quanfitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilitics as at April 01, 2016:
Particulars Total Quated Significant Significant
(Carrying Valac) prices in uhservable unobservable
active markets inpuis inputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised vost

(Refer nete 15(b))

Bormrowings 3,111.49
Current maturity of long ferm borrowings 549.09
Working capital demand Joan* -
Trade payuables * 555,43
Amount payable for property, plant and 685.70
Total (A+B) 4,905.71

Managemeni has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, frade payables and Interest
accrued on borrowings approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

There have been no transfers between Level T and Level 2 during the period.
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39 Tirancial risk management obyjectives and policies

ii)

The Company’s principal finaneial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, borrowings, security deposits and payables for properfy, plant and equipment. The main
purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company's prineipal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash, fixed
deposits and security deposils that derive directly from its operations,

The Company is exposed to market risk, eredit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senjor management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's semior
management is supported by finance department that advises on financial risks and the appropriaie financial risk governance framework for the Company. The finance
department provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risks arc identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company'’s policies and risk objectives. It is the company's policy that no trading in
derivatives for speaulative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summanised below.

. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that (he fair value of fature cash flows of a financial instrament will fluctuate because ofchangus in market prices. Market risk comprises three types
of risk: interest rate risk, curreney nsk and ather price risk, such as equity price risk.
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relale to the position as at March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obllgailons provisions; and the non-
financial asscls and liabilities,

Interest rate risk

Tnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future eash flows of a finaneial instrument will fluciuate becawse of changes in market intercst rates. The Company's interest
bearing financial Habilitics includes borrowings with fixed interest rates.

The Company's fixed rate borrewings are carried et amortised cosl. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying
amount nor the fulure cash flows will fluetuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Foreign enrrency risk

Foreign evrrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ol an exposure will fluctuaie because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's aperating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The Company transacts business in local currency as well as in foreign currency. The Company has foreign cutrency trade payables and receivables and is therefore,
cxposed te foreign exchange risk. The Company may use currency swaps or forward coniraets lowards hedging risk resulting from changes and Huctvations in foreign
cwrency exchange rafe as per the risk management policy.

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following lables demonstrate the sensitivity io a reascnably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constanl. The impact on the
Company’s profit before tax 15 due Lo changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Payables Tmpnct on Profit before tax and equity
Currency March 31, 2088 | March 31, 2017 Jannary 1, 2016
USD Sensitivity
INRATSD - Tncrease by 1% {3.60} (0.28} (1.09)
INR/USD -decrease by 1% .60 0.28 1.09
EURQ Sensitivity
INR/EURO- Increase by 1% (0.87) (0.16) 0.9
INR/EURO- decrease by 1% 0.87 .16 .19
JPY Sensitivity
INR/IPY - Increase by 1% (4.69) {5.06) (6.29)
INR/AJPY - decrease by 1% 4.69 3.06 6.29

P
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B. Credit risk

Credit risk is the nsk that counterparty will nat meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer coniract, leading 10 & financial loss. The Company is exposed o
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, jncluding deposits with banks and financial insttutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade reccivahles

Customer credit risk is managed by each Company subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and controf relating to customer credit risk management. Credit
quality of a customer is assessed bascd on an extensive credit raling, Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored,

An impairment analysis is performed at cach reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition, & large number of minor receivables are grouped into
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to eredit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of financial essets (trade
receivable) disclosed in Note 10, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect te trade receivables as low, as its customers are Jocaled in several
Jjurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets.

Further, the Company's customer basc majorly inchudes Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs), Large Corporates and Tier-1 vendors of CEMs. Based on the past trend
of recaverability of cutstanding trade receivables, the Company has not incurred material losses on account of bad debts. Hence, no adjustment has been made on account
of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) mode],

. Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations swithout incorring unacceptable losses.
The Company’s objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to mect Hs cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors fis liquidity
position and deploys a robust eash management systsm. 1L maintains adequate sources of financing inchiding loans fram hanks at an optimised cost.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company®s finaneind liabilitics hused on contractuat vadisconnted payments,

As at March 31, 2018 On demand Less than 3 3ta12 months 1 ¢o 5 years =5 years Tatal
months
Borrowings 1,410.00 202.80 643,95 2,242.19 - 4,498.54
Trade and other payables - 1,207.81 - - - 1,207.81
Other financial liabilities - 621.02 - - - 621.02
Total 1,41 0.00 2,031.63 643,95 2,242,19 - 6,.327.77
Ag al March 31, 2017 On demand Lessthan3 31012 months 1 {0 3 years > Syeurs Total
monlls
Borrowings 450.00 17933 583.66 267426 - 3,887.25
Trade and other payables - 585.43 - - - 385.43
Other financial lizbilities - 632.43 - - - 632.43
Total 450,00 1,357.19 583.66 2,674.26 - 510511
As at April BF, 2016 On demand Lessihane 3 3o 12 months 1 ¢o S years > 5 years Todal
months
Borrowimngs - - 54909 3,111.49 - 3,660.57
Trade and other payables - 555.43 - - - 555.43
Other financial liabilities - 68970 - - - 689,70

Total - 1,245.13 549.00 3,111.49 - 4,905.70




Minda TG Rubber Private Eimited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
INR in lacs, unless otherwise stated

40

a)

First-fime adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2018 has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year

“ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financil statements in accordarice with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the

Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Previous GAAF).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind’ AS applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2018,
together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017, as described i the summary of significant accounting
policies. In preparing these financial staiements, the Company’s epening balance sheet was ‘prepared as at April 1, 2016, the Company’s date of
transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company i restating its Indian GAAP financial statements,
including the halance sheet as at April 1, 2016 and the financial staternents as at and for the year ended March 31, 2017

Exemptions applied

ind AS 101 allows frst-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of cerlain requirements under Ind AS. The
Company has applied the following exemptions:

Ind AS optional cxemptions

Deemed cost-Previous GAAP carrving amount: (PFE and Intangiblel ;

Ind AS 101 penmits a first-time adopler to elect to continue with the carrying value for ail of its property, plant and equipmment as recognised in
the financial stafements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) and vse that as jts deemed cost
as at the date of transition afier making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for infangible,
Intangible Assets covered by Ind AS 38, Accordingly, the Compeny has electcd to measure alt of its property, plant and equipment, capital work
in progress and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

Arrangement in the nature of leases);

Arrangements eontaining o lease:-

Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity fo assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Tnd AS 17, this
assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and
assessed all arrangements based for embedded leases based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

Tnd AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates
The estimates at April 01, 2016 are consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with Indian GAAF (after adjustments to reflect
any differences in accounting policies, if any).

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
The Company has classified the financial assets in accordance with Ind AS 108 on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of
transition 1o Ind AS. '

This space has heen intentienally left blank
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b)  Reconciliation of eguity as at March 31, 2017

Particulars IGAAP Adjustments Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and cquipment 6,640.72 11.04 - 0,651.75
Capital work-in-progress 27.54 - 27.54
Intangible assets 40.14 - 40,14
Financial assets : -
Other financiat assets 16,07 - 16.07
(ther non-currenl assets 38.02 - 38.02
Dreferred fax assels (net) - - -
6,762.49 11.04 6,773.52
Current assets
Tnventorics 488.94 - 48894
Financial assets :
Trade receivables 503.39 - 503,39
Cash and cash equivalents 22572 - 225712
Others financial assets 18.26 - 18.26
Other curreni assets 514.86 (62.24) 452.62
. 1,751.17 (62.24) 1,688,93
TOTAL ASSETS 8,513.66 {51.20) 8,462.45
EQUITY AND LIABITYTIES
Eqjuity
BEauity share capital 4,662.30 - 4,662.30
Other cquity {1,314.53) (148.47) (1,463.00)
Total equity 3,347.77 (148.47) 3,199,30
Non-current liahilities
Financial liabilities :
Borrowings 2,676.47 - 2,676,47
Other financial liabilitics 1,253.59 82.87 1,336,446
Provisions 17.88 - 17.88
Government granls - 43,08 43.08
3,247,94 125.95 4,073,89
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities :
Borrowings 450.00 - 450,00
Trade payables 582.97 2.45 58542
Other payubles 156.34 (34.59) 121.75
Provisions 14.56 - 14.56
Govemnment grants - 3.46 3.46
Onher liabilities 14.07 - 14.07
1,217.94 (28,68) 1,18%2.26
Total liabilifies 3,165.89 97,27 526315
Total Equity And Liabilities 8,513.66 (51.20) 8,462.45

This space has been intentionally left blank
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Recenciliation of eguity as at Apvil 01, 2016 {date of transitien to Ind AS)

Particolars IGAAP Adjustmenis Ind AS
ASSETS
Non-current assefs
Property, plant and equipment 525158 14.39 5,265.97
Capital work-in-progress 1,157.9% - 1,157.99
Intangible assels 59.97 - 59.97
Financial assets : -
Crther financial assets 16.07 19.31 3538
Other non-current asseis 20.7¢ - 20,76
Deferred (ax assels (nef) - - -
6,506.37 33.70 6,540.07
Current assets
Tnventories 334.66 - 334.66
Financial assels : -
Trade receivables 72.25 - 7225
Cash and cash cquivalents 50.52 - 50,52
Others financial assets 236.09 17,72 253,81
Other current assets 600.81 {160.57) 440.24
- 1,294.33 (141,35) 1,151,48
TOTAL ASSETS 7,800.70 (109.15) 7,691.55
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3,500.00 - 3,500.00
Other equity (826.65) (129.01) (855.67)
Total equity 2,673.35 (125.01) 2,544.33
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities :
Borrowings 3,1i1.49 - 3,111.49
Other payables 1,156.07 - 1,156.07
Provisions 4,27 - 4.27
Government granls - 46.54 46,54
4,271.83 46,54 4,318.37
Current liahilities
Financial liabilitics ;
Trade payables 555.43 - 555.43
Other payables 112.85 {30.14) 82.72
Provisions 6.44 - 6.44
Government grants - 3.46 3.46
Other liabilities 180.80 - 180,80
835.52 (26.68) 828.85
Total liabilities 5,127.35 19.86 5,147.22
Total Equity And Liahilities 7,800.70 (189.15) 7,691,355

This space has been ir)ts;gionally Jeft blank
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Reconciliation of profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

Particulars IGAAT Adjustments Ind AS
Income

Revenue from operations 3,991.80 - 3,991.80
Other income 10.18 3.46 13,64
Total income 4,001.98 3.46 4,005.44
Expenscs

Cost of raw materials and components consumed 2,128.38 - 2,128.38
Cost of moulds, 10o}s & dies consumed 184.75 - 184,75
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress (113.03) - {113.03)
Excise duty on sale of goods -+ 467.90 - 467.90
Employee benefits expense 622.03 (4.57) 617.46
Finance costs 319,79 13.43 33322
Depreciation and amortisation expense ‘ 299.34 335 302.69
Other expenses 580,68 (7.94) 572,74
Total expenses 4,489.84 4.27 4,494.11
(Loss) for the year {487.86) (0.82) (488,67}
Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified 1o profit or loss in

subsequent periods

Re-measurement gains/{loss) on defined benefit plans - {7.03) (7.03)
Income tax effect ) - - -

Cther comprelensive income for the period, net of fax - {7.03) (7.03)
Tatal cemprehensive income for the period, net of tax (487.86) (7.84) (495.70)

Foolnotes to the reconciliation of equity as at March 31, 2017 aed April 01, 2016 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2017:

Inventory and consumption of stores and spares

Under Ind AS, the stores and spares having a useful economic life of greater than cne year are requited to be recognised as property, plant and
equipment in the books of account. Accordingly, such stores and spares identificd as at March 31, 2017 were derccognised from inventory and
capitalised in the books of account. Additionally, any depreciation fo be charged basis the date of purchase of the spare parts and its economic
life, is recognised in retained earnings,

Deferred tux assels

Previous GAAP requires deferred tax acconnting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and
accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the Balance Sheet approach, which focuses on
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the Balance Sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12
approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences relating to various transition adjustments which are recognised
in correlation to the underlying (ransaction either in retained earnings as a separate component in equity.

Other comprehensive income

Under Previous GAAP, the Company has not presented Other Comprehensive Income (QCT) separately, Hence, it has reconciled Previous
GAAP profit or loss to profif oz loss as per Ind AS. Farther, Previous GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind
AS. '

Acfuarial {gains)/ losses

Both under JGAAP and under Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an actuarial basis.
Undey IGAAP, the entire cost, including actvarial gains and losses, arc charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under Ind AS, re-
measurements of defined benefit obligation are recognised immediately in the books with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings
through OCT.

Statement of cash flws
The transition fron Previous GAAP fo Ind AS has not ha 4 material impact on the statement of cash flows.

i
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41 The Company had pariicipated in the Minda Industries Limiled Employee Stock Oplion Scheme 2016 and during the previous year, Ihe Nominalion & Remuneration Commitiee of Minda

Industries Limiled ('the Parenl Company") had approved Lhe grant of 50,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 2/ to its whole time director Mr. RS, Gupta in texms of the Employee Steck
Qption Scheme 2016. The scheme is monitored and supervised by the Nominalion and Remuncration Committee of the Board of Directors of Minda Industries Limited i compliance
with the provisions of Securities ind Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefils} Regulations, 2014 and amendments thereof from time to time.

The Company.accounis for Equity Stock Oplions of the P'arent Company as per the accounling treatient prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of ndia (Share Based Employee

Benefits) Regolations, 2014 (as amended from time to time) and the Ind AS - 102 on Share Based Payment.

The terms and conditions related to the grant of the share options are as follows:

Scheme Year Date of Grant Number of opfiens Vesting conditions Exercise period | Exercise Price (INR)
granted per share
Minda Emp!nyee 0.50 lacs opticas of Equity Achisving targel of markel capilalization of parent | I Year from the date
Steck Option 2016 23-11-2016 skares of face value ol INR . 180
) Company on or before March 31, 2018 ol vesling
Scheme 2016 2/ each.

The number and weighted average exercise prices ol share options under stock benefit p)

an is as follows:

Scheme Year Outstanding at the | Granted during the year Forfieted/expired Excercised during the | Excercisable at the | Outstanding at the
beginning of the during the year year end of the year end of the year
year 01.04.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2018
Minda Employee Equity shares of face 8,20 lacs options of 0.30 lacs options of | 0.30 lacs options of
Stack Option 2016 valve of INR 2/- - - Equity shares of face | Equity shares of face | Equity shares of face
Scheme 2016 each, velue of INR 2/- each. |value of INR 2/- each. | value of INR_2/- each.

Fair valuztion
The parent company has provided the fuir vatus of Share based payment cost that have been done by an independent firm of Chartered Accountants on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes Model,

The risk free intercst rates are detemmined based on the zero-coupan yisld curve for Government Securities or Government bonds with maturity equal fo the expected term of the option,
Volalitity ealculstion is based on annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rte of return of (he stock over a petiod of time, The historical period teken inte account
1o match the expected life of the option. Dividend yield has been arrived by dividing the dividend for Lhe period wilh the current market price.

42 The Company has incurred loss during the year amaunting to INR 369,87 (March 31, 2017; INR 488.67 lacs) and has accumulated josses as at March 31, 2018 amoun to INR 1854.37

lacs. However, net worth of the Company is positive and it has started commercial operations in financial year 2015-2016 and the management believes that it 3s in initia} gestation years
and had expected to incur losses. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared using the going concern assumption.
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The Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the Iransactions entered into with the assoeiated enterprises during (he Fnancial year and cxpeels it o be campluled before the fling of tax retuen for (e
enregnl periad. The management confirms thul alt transactions with pssocinted cnlerprises ore undertaken at aegotiated conlincted priccs on vsual commercial Lerms and is of he upinion that its intermational transactions are

al arw’s fenglh and (hus, no adjustments are 1ikely to ariso whiel: will have to be recorded in any subscquent period.
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